





Guide to

the Rights and Responsibilities of University Students

2022

Deanship of Student Affairs University of Hail

Student Rights and Duties Manual

2022

Table of Contents

#	Subject		Page
1	Introduction		4
2	First, the rights of a university student		5
	A.	General rights	5
	В.	Rights in the field of academic education	6-5
	C.	Rights in the field of exams	6
	D.	Rights in the field of university services	7
3	Second	, the duties of a university student	8
	A.	General duties	8
	В.	Duties in the field of academic education	8
	C.	Duties in the field of exams	9
	D.	Duties in the field of university services	10
	Third, v	iolations of the rights and duties regulations and the penalties thereof	11
4	A.	General violations	11
4	В.	Academic violations	11-12
	C.	Disciplinary penalties	12
	D.	Complaints and appeals	13

Introduction

The student rights and duties manual is a translation of the policy of our wise government to achieve the highest levels of transparency and clarity in work environments. It is also a desire from the University of Hail to provide a clear and explicit reference that clarifies to the university student what rights they have and what responsibilities they have within the university campus.

The University of Hail welcomes any inquiries from students regarding the provisions of this manual. It also clarifies the importance of responsibilities in all its clauses so that violators do not fall under the penalties stipulated.



First, the rights of a university student

A. General rights

- 1- Obtain a copy of this regulation through the university's website or through the college or department to which he/she belongs.
- 2- Facilitate the full acquisition of all his/her rights within the university through the administrative and academic bodies in accordance with the regulations and systems in force.
- 3- The commitment of faculty members, employees, and staff of the university to respect the student and give him/her all his/her academic and literary rights.
- 4- Not to be subjected to discriminatory or racist treatment.
- 5- Providing safety and guidance requirements within the university campus in a way that ensures that the student is not exposed to risks.
- 6- Enabling him/her to defend himself/herself before any authority in the university in any disciplinary case filed against him/her, and not issuing a punishment against him/her except after hearing his/her statements, unless it is proven that his/her absence was for an unacceptable reason, after being summoned for the second time.
- 7- Appealing the disciplinary decision issued against him/her in accordance with the rules stipulated in this regard in accordance with the provisions of student discipline.
- 8- Preserving the contents of his/her file within the university and the integrity of its handling, and not handing over any of it except to the student himself/herself, his/her guardian, or his/her authorized representative, by investigative authorities, judicial bodies, or any other government authority.
- 9- The right of students with disabilities to receive the appropriate and appropriate service for their needs in accordance with the systems and rules prepared for this purpose.

B. Rights in the field of academic

- 1- Providing the appropriate learning environment to achieve the educational objectives entrusted to it.
- 2- Obtaining the scientific material and knowledge related to the university courses he studies, in accordance with the provisions and university regulations governing academic work.

- 3- Obtaining the academic plans of the college or department and the specializations available to him, as well as reviewing the academic schedules before the start of the study and registering in the courses that the system allows him to do so according to the organized mechanism. 🥟
- 4- Deleting or adding any course or apologizing or postponing the entire semester according to what the study and registration system in the university provides, during the specified period announced to the students.
- 5- Evaluating the education that students receive, which helps to achieve the university's desire to improve the quality of academic education.
- 6- Faculty members are required to meet the requirements of teaching, including attending lectures and office hours, and providing students with the necessary academic support.
- 7- Students have the right to ask questions and discuss the material covered in lectures, without fear of reprisal.
- 8- Students have the right to take all required tests, unless there is a valid reason for their exclusion.
- 9- Students have the right to know their test results in a timely manner.
- 10- Students have the right to choose their major, subject to the university's requirements.
- 11- Students have the right to know the requirements for graduation, in order to be able to plan their studies accordingly.
- 12- Students have the right to receive academic guidance from faculty members and advisors, in order to help them succeed in their studies and adjust to university life.

C. Rights in the field of exams

- 1 The test questions should be within the scope of the course content and the topics that were discussed or referred to during lectures. The distribution of grades should be parallel and logical to ensure fair evaluation of student abilities.
- 2- The allotted time for answering should be sufficient.
- 3- The distribution of grades in the midterm and final exams should be appropriate to ensure fair evaluation of student abilities.
- Students should be allowed to take all exams for the course, unless there is an obstacle that prevents them from doing so, in accordance with the regulations and instructions for this matter. They should be informed of their disqualification from taking the exam in advance, with sufficient notice.

E. Rights in the field of university

Students and female students have the right to enjoy the following university services (if available) and in accordance with the regulations and laws governing them; these include:

- Obtaining a university ID card.
- 2- Using the university's services and facilities (books, electronic and branch libraries, gym, cafeteria, etc.) in accordance with the regulations and systems in force at the university.
- 3- Obtaining university housing if needed.
- 4- Receiving health care and treatment at the university's hospitals and health centers.
- 5- Participating in various sports activities and using the facilities designated for this purpose within the university.
- 6- Enjoying assistance and social care and any other services offered by the university."



Second, the duties of a university student

A. General duties

- 1- This rule prohibits students from engaging in activities that are considered to be immoral or unethical (is not Islamic), such as drug use, alcohol consumption, or sexual harassment. It also requires students to dress and behave in a manner that is appropriate for a university setting.
- 2- This rule requires students to follow the university's regulations, rules, instructions, and decisions.
 This includes attending classes, completing assignments, and following the university's code of conduct.
- 3- This rule prohibits students from damaging or tampering with university property or equipment. It also requires students to keep university facilities and property clean.
- 4- This rule prohibits students from using university facilities and equipment for unauthorized purposes. This includes using the library for non-academic purposes or using the computer lab to play games.
- 5- This rule prohibits students from verbally or physically abusing other members of the university community. It also requires students to treat others with respect, regardless of their race, religion, or sexual orientation.
- 6- This rule requires students to carry their university ID cards at all times while on campus. ID cards are required to access certain facilities and services on campus.
- 7- This rule prohibits students from submitting forged documents to the university. This includes transcripts, letters of recommendation, and other documentation.
- 8- This rule prohibits smoking inside all university buildings and facilities. This includes smoking in classrooms, offices, and public spaces.
- 9. This rule prohibits students from causing disturbance or gathering in places other than those designated for this purpose. This includes gathering in hallways or stairwells to socialize or block traffic.

B. Duties in the field of academic

- 1- Respect the rules and regulations related to the courses and fulfill all its requirements
- 2- Be regular in attending classes according to the scheduled times.

- 3- Do not attend theoretical or practical lectures in courses in which you are not enrolled except with the express permission of the professor of the course.
- 4- Make sure to turn off your phone before entering the classrooms or laboratories and do not use it during lectures or exams>
- 5- Do not eat or drink inside classrooms, laboratories, or university libraries.
- 6- Do not bring prohibited materials or devices into classrooms, laboratories, or generally inside the university campus.
- 7- Be honest and do not plagiarize the work of others or resort to illegal means or help others do so when preparing homework, research, and other academic requirements related to the courses.
- 8- Preserve university materials, tools, and books and return what you borrowed on time.
- 9- Transfer, register, excuse, delete, and add according to the provisions, regulations, and systems in force at the university.
- 10- The student must comply with the instructions and instructions given by the official in the exam hall.

C. Duties in the field of exams

- 1- Students must follow all the rules and regulations that have been established for the exams. This includes rules about the timing, location, and materials that are allowed in the exam room.
- 2- Cheating is defined as any attempt to gain an unfair advantage over other students. This includes copying from another student's paper, using unauthorized materials, or seeking help from others during the exam.
- 3- Impersonating another student is a serious offense that can result in expulsion. Students must always present/their own identification when taking an exam.
- 4- Students must maintain silence in the exam room in order to ensure that everyone has a fair chance to complete the exam.
- 5- Students must adhere to all the rules and regulations that have been established for the exams. This includes rules about the timing, location, and materials that are allowed in the exam room.
- 6- Plagiarism is the act of using the work of others without giving them credit. Students must always cite their sources when using the work of others in their academic work.

D. Duties in the field of university

- 1- Pay the fees and fines that are required by the university. This includes tuition, fees for student services, and any other fines that may be incurred.
- 2- Report any suspicious or illegal activity that you see on campus. This includes forgery of documents, vandalism, or other crimes.
- 3- Stay informed about what is happening on campus. This includes reading announcements, checking your email, and participating in student activities.
- 4- Get involved in the university community. This includes participating in sports, clubs, and other activities.



Third, violations of the rights and duties regulations and the penalties thereof

A. General violations

- 1- Any statement or act that violates honor or dignity and disrupts good conduct, behavior, and values within and outside the university.
- 2- Any damage or attempted damage to university facilities or equipment.
- 3- Organizing gatherings inside the university, issuing or distributing pamphlets, collecting money or signatures before obtaining a permit from the competent university authorities.
- 4- Harming or assaulting any member of the university's teaching or administrative staff, threatening them, or showing them disrespect in a direct or indirect manner.
- 5- Actions that violate the university's rules or deliberate abstention or incitement to not attend lectures.
- 6- Entering or trespassing on any of the university's properties, buildings, facilities, or amenities without permission.
- 7- Theft, which includes stealing services, personal property, or university property within its premises or at any university activity.
- 8- Violating the university's dress code. The university respects cultural diversity and the requirements of providing a productive learning environment. Therefore, students must respect the local culture and traditions in their dress. Improper dress is not acceptable for either men or women, and the offending student will face appropriate disciplinary action.
- 9- Possessing keys to university buildings, facilities, or property, or copying or using them without permission.
- 10- Entering or using university facilities or property without permission, including computer equipment and programs.

B. Academic violations

- 1- Failure to attend Jectures, exercises, or scientific lessons, etc., as required by the regulations.
- 2- Cheating in exams or attempting to do so.
- 3- Disrupting the exam system.
- 4- Plagiarism or intellectual theft of the work of others, which includes:

- a. Using references (books, newspapers, encyclopedias, the Internet, etc.) without disclosing this.
- b. Submitting the same work in different classes or departments.
- c. Purchasing an academic work or submitting a work prepared by someone else.
- d. Submitting a work without respecting the citation requirements within the text.
- e. Plagiarism in graduate studies:
 - i. The plagiarism rate is checked using the iThenticate program. If the plagiarism rate is less than 30%, a committee is formed to discuss the academic paper.
 - ii. If the plagiarism rate exceeds the mentioned percentage, the paper is rejected and returned to the student for rephrasing, documenting the quotations, and making them comply with the acceptable and permitted rate.
- 5- Completing assignments or work in a way that is not scientifically appropriate, such as fabricating the results and data of a particular study, submitting false certificates, submitting a group work as an individual work, or not actually participating in the group work.
- 6- Interfering in the work of other students without permission or authorization, which contributes

 to academic deception of the results.

C. Disciplinary penalties

The disciplinary committee is authorized to impose one or more of the following penalties after it has confirmed the violations referred to it:

- 1- Oral warning and documentation of this in a written commitment.
- 2-/ Written warning,
- 3- Temporary ban on participating in student activities or from some university services.
- 4- Exclusion from taking the exam in one or more courses in one semester.
- 5- Cancellation of the exam of the course or courses in cases of cheating or attempted cheating.
- 6- Suspension from study for a period of not less than one semester and not more than two semesters with suspension of the scholarship.
- 7- Final dismissal from the university.
- 8- Referral of any cases containing criminal suspicion to the competent authorities outside the university for investigation.

- 9- In case of issuance of a disciplinary decision:
 - Decisions issued with disciplinary penalties are kept in the student's file.
 - Decisions of final dismissal do not allow the student to re-register in the university.
 - The decision issued with the disciplinary penalty may be announced within the university.
 - The parent of the student or the student may be notified.

D. Complaints and appeals

Complaints or academic appeals include matters such as: admission, grades, academic suspension, deception, plagiarism, intentional falsification of information, submitting work prepared for one course in another course, in addition to copyright infringement.

It also includes non-academic complaints, such as: harassment (verbal or physical), threats, disruptive or abusive behavior on campus, fines, fees, exclusion from using a particular service, discrimination, access to records, violation of policies.

University of Hail follows a fair and transparent policy regarding student appeals against disciplinary sanctions imposed on them. In the event that the student is not satisfied with the disciplinary action taken against him, he must submit an appeal within two weeks of being notified of the action to the dean of the relevant college. The college will then review the penalty through a special committee formed for this purpose. The student will be notified of the committee's findings. If the student is still not satisfied, the matter will be referred to the Permanent Committee for the Protection of Student Rights, which will study the case and issue a binding decision.







دليل

حقوق وواجبات الطالب الجامعي

2022



عمادة شؤون الطلاب جامعة حائل



الفهرس

صفحة	البيان	Р
4	مقدمه	1
5	أولاً / حقوق الطالب الجامعي	
5	اً- حقوق عامة	
6-5	ب- حقوق في مجال التعليم الاكاديمي	2
6	ج- حقوق في مجال الاختبارات	
7	د- حقوق في مجال الخدمات الجامعية	
8	ثانياً / واجبات الطالب الجامعي	
8	أ- الواجبات العامة	
8	ب- الواجبات في المجال التعليمي الاكاديمي	3
9	ج- الواجبات في مجال الاختبارات	
9	د- الواجبات في مجال الخدمات الجامعية	
10	ثالثاً /مخالفات لائحة الحقوق والواجبات والعقوبات المترتبة على ذلك	
10	أ- مخالفات عامة	4
11-10	ب- مخالفات أكاديمية	4
11	ج- العقوبات التأديبية	
12	د- التظلم والشكاوي	
////		

المقدمة

تعد لائحة حقوق وواجبات الطالب الجامعي ترجمة لسياسة حكومتنا الرشيدة لتحقيق أعلى مستويات الشفافية والوضوح داخل بيئات العمل، ورغبة من جامعة حائل في توفير مرجعية واضحة وصريحة توضح للطالب الجامعي ماله من حقوق وما عليه من الواجبات داخل الحرم الجامعي.

فجامعة حائل ترحب باى استفسار من قبل الطالب الجامعي حيال مواد هذه اللائحة، وتوضح أهمية الواجبات <mark>بجميع بنو</mark>دها حتى لا يقع مخالفوها تحت طائلة العقوبات المقررة.



أولاً: حقوق الطالب الجامعي

حقوق عامة

- الحصول على نسخة من هذه اللائحة من خلال موقع الجامعة الالكتروني أو من خلال الكلية أو القسم الذي يتبع له.
- تسهيل الحصول على كل حقوقه داخل الجامعة كاملة من خلال الجهات الإدارية والأكاديمية وفق اللوائح والأنظمة المعمول بها. 👝
- التزام أعضاء هيئة التدريس والموظفين والعاملين من منسوبي الجامعة باحترام الطالب وإعطاءه كافة حقوقه الأكاديمية والأدبية.
 - عدم التعرض لمعاملة تمييز أو عنصرية.
 - توفير اشتراطات السلامة والارشادات في داخل الحرم الجامعي بما يضمن عدم تعرض الطالب لمخاطر.
- تمكينه <mark>من</mark> الدف<mark>اع عن نفس</mark>ه أما<mark>م أي جهة با</mark>لجام<mark>عة</mark> في أ<mark>ي قضية تأديبية ترفع ضده، وعدم صدور العقوبة</mark> في حقو إلا بعد سماع أقواله وذلك مالم يثبت أن عدم حضوره كان لعذر غير مقبول وذلك بعد استدعائه للمرة الثانية .
- ِ التَّظلم مِنَ القرا<mark>ر ال</mark>تَأْديبي الصادر ضده وذلك وفقاً للقواع<mark>د</mark> المقررة في هذا الشأن بموجب أحكام تأديب
- الحفاظ على محتويات ملفه داخل الجامعة ونزاهة التعامل معه، وعدم تسليم أي منها إلا للطالب نفسه أو ولى أمره أو من يفوضه بذلك، من قبل جهات التحقيق أو أجهزة القضاء أو أي جهة حكومية أخرى.
- حق الطالب من ذوى الهمم في الحصول على الخدمة اللائقة والمناسبة لاحتياجاته وفقاً للأنظمة والقوا<mark>عد المعدة لذ</mark>لك.

ب. حقوق في مجال التعليم الأكاديمي

- 1- توفير البيئة الدراسية المناسبة لتحقيق الأهداف التعليمية المنوطة بها ً
- 2- الحصول على المادة العلمية والمعرفة المرتبطة بالمقررات الجامعية التي يدرسها ودُلِك وفقرً للأحكام <mark>وال</mark>لوائ<mark>ح الج</mark>امع<mark>ية ا</mark>لتي <mark>تحك</mark>م ال<mark>عمل</mark> الاك<mark>اد</mark>يمي.
- 3- الحصول على الخطط الدراسية بالكلية أو القسم والتخصصات المتاحة له، وكُذلَكُ الاطلاع عُل الجداول <mark>الد</mark>راس<mark>ية قبل بدء الدراسة وإ</mark>جراء <mark>تس</mark>جيله في المقررات التي يتيحها له ∫لنظام وفُق الآلية المنظمةِ لذلك. ً
- حذف أو اضافة أي مقرر أو اعتذار أو تأجيل الفصل الدراسي بأكمله وفقا لما يتيحه نظام الدراسة والتسجيل في الج<mark>امعة وذلك</mark> في <mark>الفترة المحددة لذلك والمعلن عنها للطلاب.</mark> ـ



- 5- تقييم التعليم الذي يتلقاه الطلاب وهذا يساعد في تحقيق رغبة الجامعة في تحسين جودة التعليم الاكاديمي.
- 6- التزام أعضاء هيئة التدريس في الجامعة بمواعيد وأوقات المحاضرات واستيفاء الساعات العلمية والعملية لها وعدم الغاء المحاضرات أو تغيير أوقاتها الا في حالة الضرورة وبعد الإعلان على ذلك، على أن يتم اعطاء محاضرات بديلة عن تلك التي تم الغائها أو التغيب عنها من قبل عضو هيئة التدريس لاستيفاء المقرر وذلك بعد التنسيق مع الطلبة والقسم المعنى لإتمام ذلك.
- الاستفسار والمناقشة العلمية اللائقة مع أعضاء هيئة التدريس دون رقابة أو عقوبة في ذلك سواء كان ذلك أثناء المحاضرة أو أثناء الساع<mark>ات المكتب</mark>ية المعلنة لمقابلة الطلاب.
- 8- أجراء كافة الاختبارات التي تعقد للمقرر ما لم يكن هنالك مانع نظامي يحول دون أجرائها وفقا للوائح والتعليمات الخاصة بذلك على أن يتم اعلان الطالب بحرمانه من دخول الاختبار قبل ذلك بوقت كاف.
- 9- معرفة نتائجه التي حصل عليها في الاختبارات الشهرية والفصلية والنهائية التي أداها بعد الانتهاء من تصحيحها واعتمادها.
 - 10- اختيار التخصص الذي يقره الطالب بما لا يتعارض مع القواعد المنظمة لذلك.
 - 11- معرفة <mark>الم</mark>تطلبا<mark>ت ا</mark>للازم<mark>ة ل</mark>لتخرج<mark>.</mark>
- 12- تقديم الإرشاد الأكاديمى الذي يمكن الطالب من اختيار المقررات الدراسية الضرورية للحصول على الدرجة <mark>ال</mark>جامعي<mark>ة. وتقديم التوجيه المناسب</mark> الذ<mark>ي يساعده ع</mark>لى ت<mark>جنب</mark> المشاكل أثناء الدراسة وعلى الانسجام مع الحياة الجامعية.

حقوق في مجال الاختبارات

- 1- أن تكون أسئلة الاختبارات ضمن المقرر الحراسي ومحتوياته والمسائل التي تمت اثارتها أو الاحالة ∖اليها أثناء المحاضرات وأن يراعي التوزيع المتوازي والمنطقي للدرجات بما يحقق التقييم العادل لقدرات الطلاب.
 - 2- ان يكون الزمن المحدد للإجابة كافياً.
- 3- إن يراعي التوزيع السليم للدرجات في أسئلة الاختبارات الفصلية والنهائية بما يحقق التقييم العادل لُقِدرات الطالب.
- 4- <mark>أن</mark> يسمح لهم <mark>بإداء</mark> كا<mark>فة ا</mark>لاختب<mark>ارات</mark> الت<mark>ي تع</mark>قد للمقرر الدراسي ما لم يكن هناك م*ا*زع يحول دون ذلك ووفقا للوائح والتعليمات الخاصة بذلك على أن يتم اعلامهم بالحرمان من دخول الاختبار قُبِله بوقُتِ كاف.

د. حقوق في مجال الخدمات الجامعية

من حق الطلاب والطالبات التمتع بالخدمات الجامعية التالية (في حالة توفرها) وبما لا يتعارض مع اللوائح والقوانين المنظمة لذلك ؛ وتشمل:

- 1- <mark>الح</mark>صول على البطاقة الجامعية. •
- 2- الاستفادة من خدمات ومرافق الجامعة (الكتب المكتبات الالكترونية والفرعية الصالة الرياضية الكافتيريا... وغيرها) وذلك وفقاً للوائح والنظم المعمول بها في الجامعة.
 - الحصول على سكن جامعى فى حالة الحاجة لذلك.
 - لحصول على الرعاية الصحية والعلاج داخل المستشفيات والمراكز الصحية التابعة للجامعة.
 - المشاركة في الأنشطة الرياضية المختلفة واستخدام المرافق المخصصة لذلك داخل الجامعة.
 - التمتع بالإعانة والرعاية الاجتماعية وأى خدمات أخرى تقدمها الجامعة.

ثانيًا: واجبات الطالب الجامعي

الواجبات العامة

- عدم القيام بأعمال مخلة بالأخلاق الإسلامية أو الآداب العامة والالتزام بالزي والسلوك المناسبين.
 - احترام أنظمة ولوائح وتعليمات الجامعة وقراراتها الصادرة تنفيذا لها.
- عدم العبث أو إتلاف أو تعطيل التجهيزات أو المنشئات الجامعية عن العمل أو الاخلال بالنظافة للممتلكات والمنشآت الجامعية.
 - عدم استخدام مرافق الجامعة وتجهيزاتها في غير الأغراض المخصصة لها.
 - عدم الإساءة بالقول أو الفعل لمنسوبي الجامعة وطلابها وضيوفها ومعاملتهم بالاحترام اللائق.
 - حمل البطاقة الجامعية داخل الجامعة وتقديمها للمسؤولين عند الطلب. -6
 - عدم تقديم وثائق مزورة بغرض الحصول منها على منفعة أو ميزة من أي نوع. -7
 - -8 عدم التدخين داخل الجامعة.
 - عدم اثارة الازعاج أو التجمع في غير الأماكن المخصصة لذلك.

ب. الواجبات في مجال التعليم الأكاديمي

- احترام القواعد والترتيبات المتعلقة بالمقررات الدراسية والقيام بكافة متطلباتها.
 - الانتظام في الدراسة حسب المواعيد المقررة.
- 3- عدم حضور المحاضرات النظرية أو العملية في المقررات غير المسجل فيها إلا بإذن خاص من استاذ المقرر(.
- 4- التأكد من اغلاق الجوال قبل الدخول الى القاعات أو المعامل وعدم استخدامه أثناء المحاضرات أو الاختيارات.
 - عدم تناول الأطعمة أو المشروبات داخل قاعات الدراسة أو المعامل او المكتبات الجامعية.
 - 6- عدم ادخال مواد أو أجهزة ممنوعة في قاعات الدراسة أو المعامل أو عموما داخل الحرام الجامعي.
- 7- الأمانة وعدم الاستيلاء على اعمال الغير أو اللجوء إلى وسائل غير مشروعة أو المساعدة لذلك عند اعداد الواجبات المنزلية والبحوث والمتطلبات الدراسية الاخرى المتعلقة بالمقررات الدراسية.
 - 8- المحافظة على المواد والادوات والكتب الجامعية واسترجاع ما أستعير منها في الوقتُ المحدُّد,
 - التحويل والتسجيل والا<mark>عتذار والحذف</mark> وال<mark>اضا</mark>فة وفقا للأحكام واللوائح والأنظوة السارية في الجامعة.
 - 10- التزام الطالب بالإرشادات والتعليمات التي يوجهها المسؤول في قاعة الاختبار∖ت∕

ج. الواجبات في مجال الاختبارات

- 1- عدم الاخلال بقواعد ونظام الاختبارات.
- عدم الغش أو الشروع فيه أو المساعدة في ارتكابه.
 - 3- عدم انتحال شخصية الغير.
 - 4- التزام الهدوء في قاعة الاختبار.
- التزام الطالب بالقواعد والترتيبات المتعقلة بالاختبارات والنظام فيها.
 - 6- تجنب السرقة الأدبية والفكرية لعمل الغير.

د. الواجبات في مجال الخدمات الجامعية

- دفع المبالغ المقررة سواء كانت قيمة الخدمات الطلابية أو الغرامات أو خلافه للجهات المعنية بذلك.
 - 2- ابلاغ الج<mark>ام</mark>عة ع<mark>ن أ</mark>ي حال<mark>ة ت</mark>زوير با<mark>لوثائق أو أي نشاط</mark> يقص<mark>د ب</mark>ه الإس<mark>ا</mark>ءة الى الجامعة أو ممتلكاتها.
- 3- متابعة الاطلاع على اعلانات الجامعة وصورها المختلفة التي يقصد بها احالة الطالب بكل المستجدات التى تهمه سواء كانت لوحات داخلية أو رسائل الكترونية على البريد الإلكتروني الخاص بالطالب أو رسائل عبر الجو<mark>ال</mark> وغير<mark>ه.</mark>
- 4- المشاركة في الأنشطة الرياضية والاجتماعية والمجتمعية التي تقدمها الجامعة حسب اللوائح المنظمة لذلك.



ثَالثًا: مخالفات دليل الحقوق والواجبات والعقوبات المترتبة على ذلك

المخالفات العامة

- كل قول أو فعل يمس الشرف أو الكرامة ويخل بحسن السير والسلوك والقيم داخل الجامعة وخارجها.
 - أى اتلاف أو محاولة اتلاف للمنشئات أو التجهيزات الجامعية. -2
- تنظيم التجمعات داخل الجامعة أو إصدار النشرات أو توزيعها أو جمع الاموال او التوقيعات قبل الحصول على ترخيص من السلطات الجامعية المختصة.
- 4- الإيذاء أو الاعتداء على أي فرد من الكوادر التعليمية أو الادارية في الجامعة أو تهديده أو اظهار عدم الاحترام تجاهه بطريقة مباشرة أو غير مباشرة.
 - الاعمال المخلة بنظام الجامعة أو الامتناع المدبر أو التحريض على عدم حضور المحاضرات.
 - تجاوز أي من ممتلكات الجامعة من المباني أو المنشئات أو المرافق أو الدخول اليها دون تصريح.
- السرقة <mark>التي تشمل</mark> سر<mark>قة</mark> الخدمات او ال<mark>مم</mark>تلكات الشخص<mark>ية</mark> او الت<mark>اب</mark>عة للجامعة داخل مقراتها أو في أي نشاط جامعی.
- انتهاك معايير الملبس الخاص بالجامعة وتراعى الجامعة التنوع الثقافى وتحترم متطلبات توفير بيئة تعليم انتاجية <mark>وم</mark>ن ثم <mark>على</mark> الط<mark>لاب</mark> احترا<mark>م ا</mark>لثقاف<mark>ة والتقاليد</mark> المح<mark>لية</mark> في ملبسهم حيث لا يقبل اللبس الغير ملائم من الذكور او الإناث اذ يواجه الطالب المخالف الإجراءات التأديبية المناسبة.
 - 9- امتلاك مفاتيح في مباني الجامعة أو مرافقها أو ممتلكاتها او نسخها أو استخدامها دون تصريح،
- 10- حخول مرافق الجامعة أو ممتلكاتها او استخدامها دون تصريح بما في ذلك أدوات الحاسب الآلي $\hat{j}($ برامجه.

ب. المخالفات في مجال التعليم

- عدم حضور المحاضرات أو التمارين أو الدروس العلمية وغيرها مما تقضى اللوائح بالانتظام فيها.
 - 2- الغش في الاختب<mark>ارات</mark> أو الشروع فيه.
 - 3- الاخلال بنظام الاختبارات.
 - 4- السرقة الأدبية أو الفكرية لعمل الغير ويشمل:
 - استخدام مراجع (كتب , جرائ<mark>د , م</mark>وسو<mark>عا</mark>ت. الشبكة العنكبوتية..) دون الاف<mark>ص</mark>اح عن ذلك
 - تقديم نفس العمل في صفوف / شعب دراسية مختلفة
 - شراء عمل أكاديمي أو تسليم عمل تم اعداده من طرف شخص آخر
 - تس<mark>ليم عمل دون</mark> اح<mark>ترام حيثيات ا</mark>لاقتباس داخل النص

- الاقتباس بالدراسات العليا:
- فحص نسبة الاقتباس باستعمال برنامج iThenticate إذا كانت نسبة الاقتباس أقل من 30% يتم تشكيل لجنة لمناقشة الرسالة العلمية.
- إذا كانت نسبة الاقتباس تفوق النسبة المذكورة، فإن الرسالة ترفض وتعاد للطالب لكي يقوم بإعادة الصياغة، وتوثيق الاقتباسات وجعلها توافق النسبة المقبولة والمسموح بها.
- 5- انجاز ما يوكل اليه من تكليفات أو عمل بطريقة غير لائقة علميا مثل فبركة النتائج والمعطيات ودراسة معينه , أو تقديم شهادات مزيفة , أو تقديم عمل جماعي على أنه عمل فردى أو عدم المشاركة الفعلية في العمل الجماعي
 - 6- التدخل في أعمال طلبة آخرين بدون اذن أو تصريح بما يساهم في التضليل الاكاديمي للنتائج.

ج. العقوبات التأديبية

يحق للجنة التأديب بعد تثبتها من المخالفات المحالة اليها الايقاع بواحدة أو أكثر من العقوبات التالية:

- 1- التنبيه شفهياً وتوثيق ذ<mark>لك</mark> بتعه<mark>د خ</mark>طى. <mark> </mark>
 - 2- الانذار بالكتابة.
- 3- الحرمان المؤقت من الاشتراك في الأنشطة الطلابية أو من بعض الخدمات الجامعية.
 - 4- الحرمان من دخول الامتحان في مقرر أو أكثر في فصل دراسي واحد.
 - الغاء امتحان المقرر أو المقررات في حالات الغش أو المحاولة.
- 6- الإيقاف عن الدراسة لمدة لا تقل عن فصل دراسي واحد ولا تزيد عن فصلين مع إيقاف المكافاة.
 - 7- الفصل <mark>النه</mark>ائي <mark>من</mark> الجامعة.
 - 8- إحالة أي قضايا تحتوي شبه جنائية للجهات المختصة خارج الجامعة للتحقيق في ذلك.

 - تحفظ القرارات الصادرة بالعقوبات التأديبية في ملف الطالب.
 - يترتب على قرارات الفصل النهائي عدم السماح بإعادة قيد الطالب في الجامعة.
 - <mark>يجو</mark>ز إع<mark>لان ا</mark>لقر<mark>ار الص</mark>ادر <mark>بالع</mark>قوب<mark>ة الت</mark>أديبي<mark>ة ف</mark>ي داخل الجامعة.
 - يجوز إخطار ولى أمر الطالب أو الطالبة.

ب. التظلم والشكاوى الطلابية

و تشمل الشكوى أو التظلم الأكاديمي المتعلق بمسائل أكاديمية مثل: القبول، الدرجات، الإيقاف <mark>ال</mark>أكاديمي، التضليل، الانتحال، تزوير المعلومات عن عمد، تقديم العمل المعد لمقرر دراسي ما في مقرر دراسي آخر، بالإضافة إلي انتهاك حقوق التأليف.

وتتضمن كذلك الشكاوي غير الأكاديمية, وهي على سبيل المثال لا الحصر: التحرش(اللفظى أو الجسدى)، التهديد، السلوك التخريبي أو التعسفي داخل الحرم الجامعي، الغرامات، الرسوم، الاستبعاد من استخدام خدمة معينة، التمييز، الاطلاع على السجلات، مخالفة السياسات.

و تنتهج جامعة حائل سياسة عادلة وشفافة حول تظلم الطلاب ازاء ما يوقع عليهم من عقوبات تأديبية في حال عدم اقتناع الطالب بالإجراء التأديبي المتخذ ضده حيث عليه التقدم خلال اسبوعين من إبلاغه بذلك الى عميد الكلية التابع لها وتتولى الكلية النظر في العقوبة من خلال لجنه خاصة يتم تكوينها لهذه المهمة ويتم ابلاغ الطالب بما تراه هذه اللجنة وفي حالة عدم اقتناعه بذلك يتم احالة الموضوع للجنة الدائمة لحماية الحقوق الطلابية والتى تتولى دراسة الحالة والبحث فيها ويكون قرارها ملزماً للجميع.